
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

TOWNS & COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY SUB- COMMITTEE 

AGENDA 
 

7.30 pm 
Tuesday 

18 August 2015 
Town Hall, Main Road, 

Romford 

 
Members 9: Quorum 4 
 
COUNCILLORS: 
 

Conservative  
(4) 

Residents’  
(2) 

East Havering 
Residents’ 

(1) 

 

Steven Kelly 
Robby Misir 

Frederick Thompson 
Linda Trew 

 

June Alexander 
Jody Ganly 

 

Linda Hawthorn 
(Vice-Chair) 

 

    

UKIP  
(1) 

Independent 
Residents’  

(1) 

  

Lawrence Webb 
(Chairman) 

Michael Deon Burton 
 

  

 
 
 

For information about the meeting please contact: 
Taiwo Adeoye 01708 433079 

taiwo.adeoye@onesource.co.uk 

Public Document Pack



Towns & Communities Overview & Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 18 August 2015 

 
 

 

Protocol for members of the public wishing to report on meetings of the London 
Borough of Havering 
 
Members of the public are entitled to report on meetings of Council, Committees and Cabinet, 
except in circumstances where the public have been excluded as permitted by law. 
 
Reporting means:- 
 

 filming, photographing or making an audio recording of the proceedings of the meeting; 

 using any other means for enabling persons not present to see or hear proceedings at 
a meeting as it takes place or later; or 

 reporting or providing commentary on proceedings at a meeting, orally or in writing, so 
that the report or commentary is available as the meeting takes place or later if the 
person is not present. 

 
Anyone present at a meeting as it takes place is not permitted to carry out an oral commentary 
or report. This is to prevent the business of the meeting being disrupted. 
 
Anyone attending a meeting is asked to advise Democratic Services staff on 01708 433076 
that they wish to report on the meeting and how they wish to do so. This is to enable 
employees to guide anyone choosing to report on proceedings to an appropriate place from 
which to be able to report effectively. 
 
Members of the public are asked to remain seated throughout the meeting as standing up and 
walking around could distract from the business in hand. 
 
 
What is Overview & Scrutiny? 
Each local authority is required by law to establish an overview and scrutiny function to 
support and scrutinise the Council’s executive arrangements. Each overview and scrutiny sub-
committee has its own remit as set out in the terms of reference but they each meet to 
consider issues of local importance.  
 
The sub-committees have a number of key roles: 
 

1. Providing a critical friend challenge to policy and decision makers. 

 

2. Driving improvement in public services. 

 

3. Holding key local partners to account. 

 

4. Enabling the voice and concerns to the public. 

 

 

The sub-committees consider issues by receiving information from, and questioning, Cabinet 

Members, officers and external partners to develop an understanding of proposals, policy and 

practices. They can then develop recommendations that they believe will improve 

performance, or as a response to public consultations. These are considered by the Overview 



Towns & Communities Overview & Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 18 August 2015 

 
 

 

and Scrutiny Board and if approved, submitted for a response to Council, Cabinet and other 

relevant bodies. 

 

 

Sub-Committees will often establish Topic Groups to examine specific areas in much greater 

detail. These groups consist of a number of Members and the review period can last for 

anything from a few weeks to a year or more to allow the Members to comprehensively 

examine an issue through interviewing expert witnesses, conducting research or undertaking 

site visits. Once the topic group has finished its work it will send a report to the Sub-Committee 

that created it and will often suggest recommendations for the Overview and Scrutiny Board to 

pass to the Council’s Executive. 

 

 Terms of Reference 
 

The areas scrutinised by the Committee are: 
 

 

 Regulatory Services 

 Planning and Building Control 

 Town Centre Strategy 

 Licensing 

 Leisure, arts, culture 

 Housing Retained Services 

 Community Safety 

 Social and economic regeneration 

 Parks 

 Social inclusion 

 Councillor call for Action 
 



Towns & Communities Overview & Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 18 August 2015 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEMS 
 
1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE 

MEMBERS  

 
 (if any) - receive. 

  
 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  

 
 Members are invited to declare any interests in any of the items on the agenda at this 

point of the meeting.  Members may still declare an interest in an item at any time 
prior to the consideration of the matter. 
  
 

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  

 
 The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other 

events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation. 
  
 

4 MINUTES (Pages 1 - 4) 

 
 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of 23 June 2015 and to 

authorise the Chairman to sign them.  
 

5 HOW ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR IS DEALT WITH IN THE BOROUGH, 
SPECIFICALLY RELATING TO COUNCIL TENANCIES  

 
 Report to follow if available 

 

6 A REVIEW OF HOW WELL COUNCIL HOUSING MANAGES MAJOR WORKS TO 
PEOPLES HOMES  

 
 Report to follow if available 

 

7 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT - ANNUAL (2014/15) (Pages 5 - 48) 

 
 The Committee is to consider a report on the Annual Corporate Performance 

information that was presented to Cabinet at its meeting on 8 July 2015. 
 

8 REPORT OF THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR LANDLORD TOPIC GROUP (Pages 

49 - 114) 
 
 This report is not available to the Press or Public by virtue of paragraph three of Part 1 

of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Towns & Communities Overview & Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 18 August 2015 

 
 

 

9 URGENT BUSINESS  

 
 To consider any other item in respect of which the Chairman is of the opinion, by 

reason of special circumstances which shall be specified in the minutes, that the item 
should be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 
  
 
 
 
 

 
 Andrew Beesley 

Committee Administration  Manager 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1M 

 

 
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

TOWNS & COMMUNITIES OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY SUB- COMMITTEE 
Town Hall, Main Road, Romford 
23 June 2015 (7.30  - 8.40 pm) 

 
 
Present: 
 
Councilllor Lawrence Webb (Chairman), Linda Hawthorn (Vice-Chair), Jody Ganly, 
Steven Kelly, +Barbara Matthews, Frederick Thompson and Linda Trew.  
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor June Alexander. 
+ Councillor B Matthews substituted for Councillor Alexander. 
 

Through the Chairman, announcements were made regarding emergency evacuation 
arrangements and the decision making process followed by the Sub-Committee. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
1 MINUTES  

 
The minutes of the meeting held on 22 April 2015 were agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

2 CABINET REPORT UPDATE - GLA BIG GREEN FUNDS & HLF 
LANDSCAPE PARTNERSHIP FUNDING APPLICATIONS  
 
In accordance with the Council’s Continuous Improvement Model, the Sub-
Committee received a briefing on the GLA Big Green Fund & Heritage Lottery 
Fund (HLF) Landscape Partnerships funding applications from the Projects 
and Programme Manager Economic Development. 
 
The Sub-Committee was informed that Cabinet gave approval for the 
submission of two funding bids; an application to the Greater London Authority 
Big Green Fund and an application to the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) for a 
Landscape Partnership grant.  Both these applications were submitted and 
had been successful.   
 
The report detailed how the aim of securing funding for environmental 
regeneration programmes in Havering’s countryside and green spaces was 
being achieved through developed partnership work between the Council, 
the Thames Chase Trust, the Forestry Commission and other Thames 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Towns & Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 23 June 2015 

 

2M 

 

Chase local authorities i.e. London Borough of Barking and Dagenham and 
Thurrock Council.  
 
The initiative recognised that green infrastructure had an increasingly 
important role to play in order to meet the challenges of sustaining 
economic growth and the expected changes to London’s demography and 
climate.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted that green infrastructure was becoming more 
important in urban areas because it could help to absorb flood water, cool 
the urban environment and clean the air. Members noted that it could also  
be used for local food production, to promote sport and leisure and ensure 
space for London’s fauna and flora, As a network it could provide links and 
connections between places, encouraging walking and cycling, highlighting 
landscape and heritage and supporting the local economy, in particular the 
visitor economy. 
 
The partnership had embarked upon the development stage, with funding 
from the HLF that would pay for the appointment of a Development 
Manager and the commissioning of a Landscape Character Assessment 
and Action Plan, an Audience Development Plan, a training and skills audit 
and further community engagement.  This work was now underway and if 
successful, it was anticipated that the Lottery would be able to offer the full 
grant of an additional £1.3million. 
 
Greater London Authority Big Green Fund 
In 2011 the London Mayor published the All London Green Grid 
Supplementary Planning Guidance to the London Plan which outlined a 
vision and framework for London’s network of green and open spaces, its 
green infrastructure.   
 
The report stated that the Mayor supported the identification of 11 Green 
Grid Areas and the establishment of area-based partnerships to promote 
cross boundary working. Havering was located in Area 3 of the All London 
Green Grid - Thames Chase, Beam, Ingrebourne.   
 
The Big Green projects were expected to result in transformative actions ‘on 
the ground’ and to be delivered by March 2015. 
 
The Thames Chase Partnership was successful and achieved a grant of 
£350,000 for a project called Thames Chase Big Green Destinations.   
 
The Sub-Committee noted that the project sought to improve access to the 
Thames Chase area by creating improved access for people visiting from 
London and arriving at Dagenham East Station.  The improved connections 
between the station and the Ingrebourne Valley had been delivered and 
were able to make use of the new bridge over the Beam River at Bretons.  
At Ingrebourne Hill, visitors could travel north to Hornchurch Country Park 
and the new visitor centre. The improvement also included access to Harold 
Hill following the Ingrebourne Way and south to Rainham Village, the 

Page 2



Towns & Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 23 June 2015 

 

3M 

 

marshes and the River Thames.  The GLA grant was match funded by TfL 
investment in Bretons Bridge and Veolia North Thames Trust investment at 
Rainham Marshes and at the Thames Chase Forest Centre.   
 
Members commended the partnership working and improvements that had 
been implemented in the Thames Chase area. 
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report  
 

3 CABINET REPORT UPDATE - BEAM PARK HOUSING ZONE 
PROPOSALS  
 
In accordance with the Council’s Continuous Improvement Model, the sub-
committee received a briefing on the Rainham and Beam Park Housing 
Zone Bid proposal from the Programmes & Projects Manager - Economic 
Development. 
 
Following the submission of Havering’s Housing Zone proposal in 
September 2014, a number of discussions were held with GLA officers.  
 
The report detailed that these discussions were centred on the form of 
funding requested, whether non recoverable or recoverable grant.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that for some elements of social infrastructure 
funding was sought for areas such as leisure provision and a new primary 
school but these were not deemed to be eligible for the grant. 
 
The report informed the Sub-Committee that the core request for funding 
were for site assembly, remediation, A1306 improvements, Beam Park 
station and Social Housing grants were approved by the GLA Housing Zone 
Challenge Panel on 5 Feb 2015. 
 
The report detailed the following deliverables from the proposal: 
 
•  3,457 new homes (941 affordable) 
 
• A1306 to be transformed into a boulevard 

• Transport: the new Beam Park Station and bus extensions 

• Programme of site assembly for housing development  

• Social and physical infrastructure – health, leisure, education and 

energy network 

• Access to open spaces 

• Robust Planning Framework and Masterplan design guide. 

Page 3



Towns & Communities Overview & 
Scrutiny Sub- Committee, 23 June 2015 

 

4M 

 

The Sub-Committee noted that the Rainham and Beam Park Housing Zone 
submission had been formally approved by the GLA’s Housing Investment 
Group on 13 May and a public announcement from the Mayor confirming 
the Housing Zone status would be made on 25 June.  
 
The Sub-Committee noted the report. 
 

4 REVIEW OF WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Sub-Committee received and agreed its work programme for the 
municipal year.  
 
It was agreed that the Sub-Committee receive a presentation from 
appropriate officers in Homes & Housing on the current Anti-Social Tenant 
policies at its next meeting. 
 
The Sub-Committee also agreed to the suggestion of the Chairman to 
consider a briefing on the Improvement and Better Homes programme.  
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chairman 
 

 

Page 4



 
 

CABINET 
8 July 2015 

 

Subject Heading: 
 

CORPORATE PERFORMANCE 
REPORT: ANNUAL (2014/15) 
 

Cabinet Member: 
 

Cllr Clarence Barrett 
 

CMT Lead: 
 

Andrew Blake-Herbert 

Report Author and contact details: 
 

Sunita Patel, Corporate Performance and 
Projects Officer 
sunita.patel@havering.gov.uk  
01708 432017  
 

Policy context: 
 

The report sets out the Council‟s 
performance against the Corporate 
Performance Indicators and annual targets 
for 2014/15. 
 

Financial summary: 
 

There are no direct financial implications 
arising from this report.  It is expected that 
the delivery of targets will be achieved 
within existing resources. 
 

Is this a Key Decision? 
 

No 

Is this a Strategic Decision? Yes/No 
 

No 

When should this matter be reviewed? 
 

The Corporate Performance Report will be 
brought to Cabinet at the end of each 
quarter. 
 

Reviewing OSC: 
 

Six overview and scrutiny sub-committees 
(Children and Learning, Crime and 
Disorder, Environment, Health, Individuals, 
Towns and Communities) and the 
Overview and Scrutiny Board 

 
 
The subject matter of this report deals with the following Council Objectives 
 
 

Havering will be clean and its environment will be cared for [X] 
People will be safe, in their homes and in the community [X] 
Residents will be proud to live in Havering  [X] 
 
 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 7

mailto:sunita.patel@havering.gov.uk


Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 

SUMMARY 

 
This report sets out the Council‟s performance against the corporate performance 
indicators and annual targets for 2014/15 according to the five Living Ambition goals of 
last year‟s Corporate Plan (Environment, Learning, Towns & Communities, Individuals 
and Value). 
 
The report identifies where the Council is performing well (Green) and not so well 
(Amber and Red).  The RAG ratings for 2014/15 are as follows: 
 

 Red = more than 10% off the annual target and where performance has not 
improved compared to the same quarter last year 

 Amber = more than 10% off the annual target and where performance has 
improved or been maintained compared to the same quarter last year 

 Green = on or within 10% of the annual target 
 
Where the RAG rating is „Red‟, corrective action has been included in the report. This 
highlights what action the Council is taking to address poor performance, where 
appropriate. 
 
Also included in the report is a Direction of Travel (DOT) column to compare: 
 

 Short term performance – with the previous quarter (Quarter 4 / annual 2014/15 
with Quarter 3 2014/15) 

 Long term performance – with the previous year (annual 2014/15 with annual 
2013/14) 

 
 
An upward green arrow () means performance is better than the same time last year / 
quarter and a downward red arrow () means performance is worse. A horizontal 
amber arrow () means that performance has remained the same. 
 

 
Annual 2014/15 - Performance Summary 

 
 

70 Corporate Performance Indicators are measured annually and 67 of these have 
been given a RAG status. In summary: 

 

 57 (85%) have a RAG status of Green; compared to 45 of 54 (83%) in 2013/14. 

 10 (15%) have a RAG status of Red or Amber; compared to 9 of 54 (17%) in 
2013/14. 

 

1 

1 

2 

1 

1 

1 

1 

2 

5 

10 

16 

13 

8 

5 

2 

1 

1 

0 2 4 6 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22

Partnership

Value

Individuals

Towns & Communities

Learning

Environment

Number of Performance Indicators 

 Red 

 Amber 

 Green 

 N/A 

Page 6



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
Also attached to the report, for the first time this quarter (at Appendix 2), is a Demand 
Pressure Dashboard illustrating the growing demands on Council services and the 
context that the performance levels set out in this report have been achieved within. 
 
Targets 
 
Included in the report are the proposed targets for 2015/16, to allow further comparison 
of the target against last year‟s outturn. 
 
 

 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
That Cabinet: 
 
Review the performance indicators set out in Appendix 1 and note the corrective 
action that is being taken where necessary.  
 
Agree the proposed amendments to the performance targets for various corporate 
performance indicators set as part of the Corporate Plan and detailed below. 
 
Note the content of the Demand Pressures Dashboard attached at Appendix 2. 
 
 

REPORT DETAIL 

 
 
Environment – to ensure a clean, safe and green borough 
 

Highlights: 
 

The Council‟s performance around making Havering a clean, safe and green borough 

has been very positive, being within target tolerance for five out of seven targets for the 

year so far.  The outturn for one of the targets will not become available until August 

2015. If it had not been for the very unfortunate fire at Frog Island waste management 

plant, it is very likely that all targets would have been met.  

 

Performance was better than 2013/14 in the following areas: 

 Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling and composting is now 

34% - up 1% on the same time last year  

 There were 51 people killed or seriously injured on the roads in 2013, that‟s 27 

fewer people than 2012 

 There were 2,914 fly-tipping incidents reported, which is 706 fewer reports than 

in 2013/14 

 Parking income against budget rose to £3,675,348 in total; £177,362 more than 

was collected last year. 

 

 Page 7



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
Improvements required:  
 

 Against a target of 93%, the percentage of missed collections put right within 

target was 66%. Collections were severely disrupted in August due to a fire at 

the waste management facility, which coincided with Serco taking over the 

waste management contract from Biffa. Since then, there have been issues with 

IT systems and processes, and although performance has improved month on 

month, it has not been possible to recover the cumulative position for the year. 

However, this will not be a corporate indicator for 2015/16. Instead there will be 

a measure of the number of missed waste collections per 100,000, so the 

performance indicator will measure how often we deliver the service “right first 

time” rather than how quickly we correct omissions. 

 
 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Bigger is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Bigger is better”) 

 
 

 

 
Learning – to champion education and learning for all 

 

Highlights: 
 

Seven out of nine of the Learning indicators either met or exceeded the target, and a 

further one was within target tolerance, showing that the Council is dedicated to 

working with schools and the further education sector to promote first class learning 

opportunities for all.   
 

Performance was better than 2013/14 in the following four areas: 

 680 apprentices (aged 16-18) were recruited in the borough, 37 more than last 

year. 

 The percentage of 3 and 4 year olds who have access to an early education 

entitlement place if their parents wish has gone up 1% to 102%. The DfT 

advises that, in some cases, local authority take-up rates can exceed 100%. 

This is because population estimates at lower geographic levels, such as a local 

authority, are subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than at national level. 

 The percentage of Early Years providers judged Good or Outstanding by Ofsted 

has gone up by 5% to 80% 

 Now only 3% of 16 to 19 year olds (school years 12-14) are not in education, 

employment or training (NEET), 1.1% less than last year 

9
7

%
 

9
3

%
 

9
4

%
 

9
5

%
 

9
9

%
 

5
9

%
 

6
2

%
 

6
6

%
 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

SC05: Percentage of missed 
collections put right within target 

2013/14 Target (93%) 2014/15 Target (93%)

Page 8



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
 

Improvements required:  
 

 Only one Learning indicator didn‟t meet the annual target. Against a target of 

68%, 64% of pupils achieved five or more A*-C grades at GCSE, including 

Maths and English, at Key Stage 4. Performance is below the target set 

because there have been changes to the examination system during the last two 

years, which affected outcomes in Havering and nationally.  However, 

attainment remains above the national and statistical neighbours averages and 

is broadly in line with the London average. Havering nationally ranks 35th of 152, 

and ranks 2nd against statistical neighbours. 

 

Towns & Communities – to provide economic, social and cultural opportunities 
in thriving towns and villages 
 

Highlights: 
 

Performance was either above or on target for 11 out of 14 indicators, and within target 

tolerance for a further two, which demonstrates that the Council continues to 

regenerate our towns and communities and strives to ensure affordable homes are 

provided for local people.   
 

Out of the 11, the following achieved better performance than last year: 

 The Council secured £5,628,965 net external funding through regeneration 

initiatives, that is £1,395,770 more than in 2013/14 

 98% of Leaseholder Service Charge Arrears were collected (excluding major 

works) compared with 93% last year 

 213 more homes were made decent than in 2013/14, totalling 1,291 for the year 

 Rent arrears against rent debit reduced from 2.14% to 2.07%  

 

Improvements required:  
 

 The average void to re-let time has been considerably longer than both the 

target and last year‟s outturn.  Performance briefly fell within target tolerance in 

Quarter 1, however the average void to re-let time continued to worsen in 

Quarter 2 (30 days) and Quarters 3 and 4 (33 days).  Helping those affected by 

welfare reforms to downsize resulted in more empty homes activity. Changes to 

work contractors also had an impact, resulting in backlogs. While a corrective 

action plan was put in place, a higher than average number of new voids (49) in 

December had a significant impact on performance for Quarters 3 and 4.  A 

comprehensive recovery programme was implemented in February 2015, which 

has reduced the numbers of empty properties available to re-let.  An action plan 

is available on request. Contractor performance on turnaround (average 25 

days) is slowly improving and, as at 19 June 2015, stood at 22 void general 

needs properties, with an average turnaround time during April and May of 15 

days. The Housing service is continuing to review all activities associated with 

re-letting properties and is currently piloting an approach where tenants bidding 

for houses are asked to take properties “as seen” with works to follow. Page 9



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Smaller is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Smaller is better”) 

 

 

 

 

 
Individuals – to value and enhance the lives of our residents 
 
Highlights: 
 

The Council has improved services for the borough‟s most vulnerable families and 

children, focusing on early intervention to improve wellbeing.  Performance met or 

exceeded target against eight of the 21 indicators and was within target tolerance 

against a further eight indicators. 

 

Ten out of the 21 indicators saw better performance than last year: 

 63% of adults with learning disabilities were living in their own home or with their 

family, compared to 61% the previous year.  

 The percentage of adults in contact with secondary mental health services in 

paid employment went up to 6.8% from 5.1% 

 The percentage of people who return to Adult Social Care 91 days after 

completing reablement has fallen to 4.4% from 5.9% 

 The percentage of carers who request information and advice has gone up 

significantly from 32.1% in 2013/14 to 88.9% 

 The percentage of Looked After Children (LAC) with stable placements has 

increased with 83% of placements lasting for at least two years, compared to 

79% last year.  As well as performance being above target (80%), the Council is 

also performing significantly above the England average (67%). 

 The percentage of Child Protection Plans lasting more than 24 months has 

fallen from 4.7% to 4% 

 Only four children out of 251 became the subject of a Child Protection Plan for a 

second or subsequent time within two years, that is 1.6%, compared with 5.8% 

last year 

 The total number of Careline and Telecare users in the borough has increased 

by 121, from 4,604 in 2013/14 to 4,725 in 2014/15. 

 The rate of permanent admissions to residential and nursing care homes is at 

9.6 per 100,000 population (aged 18-64), very slightly better than last year when 

performance was 9.7 per 100,000 population.  

 There were 12 new in-house foster carers recruited in 2014/15, compared with 

eight in the previous year 

3
4

 

2
7

 

2
8

 

2
7

 

2
7
 

3
0

 

3
3

 

3
3

 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

H3: Average void to relet time 
(days) 

2013/14 Target (22) 2014/15 Target (25)

Page 10



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
 

Improvements required:  
 

 The percentage of direct payments as a percentage of self-directed support 

remains below target with 36% of people (736) currently in receipt of a direct 

payment out of a possible 2,036. This is below target (45%).  It is not possible to 

compare to performance during the same period last year due to a change in 

definition.  It is expected that the roll-out of the pilots arising from the recent 

Lean Review of Adult Social Care and Commissioning, such as the potential for 

a specialist care planning function, will improve performance. This function will 

enable care planners to work closely with service users to develop robust 

person-centred support plans with the aim of increasing uptake. 
 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Bigger is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Bigger is better”) 

 
 

  

 Total non-elective admissions into hospital (general & acute), at all ages, per 

100,000 population, has not met the target (2,582) with 147 more admissions. 

Though, according to the Council‟s definition, performance against this indicator 

would be RAG rated Green (as it is within 10% of the target), it has been RAG 

rated Red as it is a Better Care Fund (BCF) indicator, with access to funding 

being directly linked to the achievement of the target. A deep-dive by colleagues 

in the Clinical Commissioning Group and Commissioning Support Unit has been 

commissioned with the outcome to be determined, and this continues to be 

monitored as part of the Better Care Fund submissions. 

 Six of 17 children (35%) were waiting no longer than 16 months to move in with 

their adopting family.  This is worse than target (60%), however it is important to 

note that a change in definition (from 20 months to 16 months) makes direct 

comparisons with previous years‟ performance difficult.   

 
Value – to deliver high customer satisfaction and a stable Council Tax 
 

Highlights: 
 

Providing efficient and effective services for the borough is central to the Council 

achieving its goals. 
 

Out of the 12 performance indicators, performance against eight either met or 

exceeded the target. Performance was within target tolerance against a further two 

indicators. 

4
1

 

3
7

 

3
7

 

3
6

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

ASCOF 1C(ii): Direct payments as 
a percentage of self-directed 

support (%) 

2013/14 Target (N/A) 2014/15 Target (45)

Trend data 
not available 

Page 11



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
 

Four of these have seen better performance compared with last year: 

 The percentage of corporate complaints completed within 10 days (86%) was 

better than last year (73%).  

 Call abandonment rates were 3.3% lower at only 8.7%.  

 The speed of processing new Housing Benefit / Council Tax Support claims has 

gone down from 26 days to 18 days, which is significantly quicker than the target 

of 24 days 

 The speed of processing changes in circumstances of Housing Benefit/Council 

Tax Support claimants has gone down from 12 days to 10 days. 
 

Improvements required:  
 

 The sickness absence rate per annum per employee has remained consistently 

above target. Human Resources continues to work with Heads of Services to 

maintain momentum and proactively manage sickness cases.  The Council‟s 

Corporate Management Team has agreed that all managers with responsibility 

for staff will have a specific objective relating to managing sickness absence 

effectively in their PDRs. In addition, CMT has agreed funding for two fixed term 

resources for one year to be deployed within the Operational HR team to work 

with managers to assist them to manage cases proactively. Intensive work to 

reduce sickness absence began at the beginning of the year, and the results 

were starting to be seen in Q3, when the number of long term absent employees 

went down to 127, and fell further to 113 in Q4. Over the last two quarters 32 of 

these people have left the Council. Fifteen of them resigned, six were dismissed 

through the sickness absence policy, four left on ill health retirement, three were 

dismissed for reasons other than sickness absence, two retired and two left for 

other reasons.  

 

Since the end of 2013/14, the average number of days absence per employee 
has lowered from 10.5 days to 10.1 days, and is projected to lower to 9.5 days 
by the end of 2015/16 and to 8.5 days in 2016/17. 

 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Smaller is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Smaller is better”) 

 
 

 

 The percentage of Member / MP Enquiries completed within 10 days (78%) was 

also worse than target (90%) and slightly worse than last year (83%).  A review 

of complaints was undertaken last year and a revised process has been rolled 

8
.8

 

9
.3

 

9
.7

 

1
0

.5
 

1
0

.4
 

1
0

.1
 

1
0

.2
 

1
0

.1
 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CI1: Sickness absence rate (days) 

2013/14 Target (7.6) 2014/15 Target (7.6)

Page 12



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
out for both customer and Member complaints. This new process is designed to 

improve complaint responses. 
 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Bigger is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Bigger is better”) 

 
 

 
Partnership Indicators 
 
There are a number of indicators for which the Council is not solely responsible for 

either the target or performance.  Performance against four of the seven indicators met 

or exceeded the annual target.  Performance against a further target was within target 

tolerance. 

 

Highlights: 
 

 The number of burglaries reported has reduced significantly by 403 incidents to 

1,993.  This is currently exceeding the target set by the Mayor‟s Office for 

Policing and Crime (MOPAC) to reduce offending by 20% by March 2016. 

 Anti-social behaviour reports have fallen from 6,748 last year to 4,833, which is 

a 28% reduction. 

 The overall rate of delayed transfers of care from hospital, 4.5 per 100,000, is 

better than target and last year when performance was 5.3 per 100,000 

 

 

Improvements required:  
 

 The number of eligible people receiving an NHS health check (5,195, that is 

38.6%) is below target (8,879 of 13,453 – 66%) and less than last year (6,396 – 

56.7%). Underperformance is being addressed by developing a cluster 

arrangement with GPs, putting in place improvement plans for GPs that are 

underperforming, attending nurse and practice manager meetings as well as 

developing marketing materials. 
 

6
7

%
 

7
8

%
 

8
1

%
 

8
3

%
 

7
8

%
 

7
9

%
 

8
0

%
 

7
8

%
 

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

CS10: Percentage of Member/MP 
enquiries completed within 10 days 

2013/14 Target (90%) 2014/15 Target (90%)

Page 13



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 

 

 
Trend data key 
 

 Bigger is better 

 2013/14 Target 

 2014/15 Target 

 Target tolerance (“Bigger is better”) 

 
 

 
The full Corporate Performance Report is attached as Appendix 1. 

 

Target setting 
 

This report includes the proposed targets for 2015/16, which have been set as part of 

the service planning process.  Where proposed targets appear less challenging than 

the 2014/15 outturn, these have been queried by the Corporate Policy & Diversity team 

and an explanation provided by the service in the comments box. 
 

The report considered by the Cabinet meeting on 18 March 2015, at which the 

Corporate Plan for 2015/16 was agreed, made clear that the measures and targets set 

out in the Corporate Plan at that time would continue to be refined as necessary as 

service plans were finalised throughout the remainder of March 2015.  As such, the 

following amendments to the targets that were agreed at that time are now proposed: 
 

 Reduce residual household waste to 646kg per household – The service would 

like this changed to 664kg in light of year end outturn data and trends being 

seen across London.  

 Increase the number of online report forms to 35% of all reports – It is proposed 

to increase the target to 40% following discussions at the Council‟s Overview 

and Scrutiny Board. 

 Increase the number of volunteers assisting in running of library services to 360 

– The service would like to reduce the target to 290 as officers believe this to be 

a more realistic and achievable – whilst still challenging - target 

 100% of estate inspections achieve the target score – It is proposed to reduce 

the target to 95% following discussions at the Council‟s Overview and Scrutiny 

Board. 

 Collect 93% of Leaseholder Service Charge Arrears (excluding major works) – 

The service proposes to increase the target to 100%.  

 Reduce the percentage of rent arrears against rent debit to 2.5% - It is proposed 

to amend the target to 2.4% following discussions at the Council‟s Overview and 

Scrutiny Board.  

 Increase the speed of processing changes in circumstances of Housing Benefit 

and/or Council Tax Support claimants to within 15 days – It is proposed to 

1
3

%
 

2
4

%
 

4
0

%
 

5
7

%
 

7
%

 

1
8

%
 

2
7

%
 

3
9

%
 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

70%

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

PH3b: Percentage of 
NHS Health Checks received 

2013/14 Target (49.0) 2014/15 Target (66.0)

Page 14



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
increase the target to 12 days. Following discussion with the service, officers 

believe this would be a challenging but achievable target. 

 
 

REASONS AND OPTIONS 

 
 
Reasons for the decision:  
 

To provide Cabinet Members with an update on the Council‟s performance against the 

Corporate Performance Indicators and annual targets, in line with best practice. 
 

Other options considered: N/A 

 
 
 

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS 

 
 
Financial implications and risks: 
 

Adverse performance against some Corporate Performance Indicators may have 

financial implications for the Council, particularly where targets are explicitly linked with 

particular funding streams.  
 

Whilst it is expected that targets will be delivered within existing resources, officers 

regularly review the level and prioritisation of resources required to achieve the targets 

agreed by Cabinet at the start of the year. 

 
Human Resources implications and risks: 
 
The oneSource HR Service will continue to work with line managers to ensure that 

sickness absence is being managed appropriately and efficiently across the Council. 

Targeted actions are being taken in Council services with the highest levels of sickness 

absence and temporary additional HR resources have been agreed by CMT to support 

managers in this regard.   
 

Resilience Training is being made available to managers and staff by the oneSource 

Health & Safety Service and all managers are in the process of completing the 

Management Development Programme to develop the relevant skills. All managers 

with responsibility for staff will have a specific objective relating to managing sickness 

absence effectively in their PDRs. 

 
Legal implications and risks: 
 

Whilst reporting on performance is not a statutory requirement, it is considered best 

practice to review the Council‟s progress against the Corporate Plan and Service Plans 

on a regular basis. 

 
Page 15



Cabinet, 8 July 2015 

 
 
 
Equalities implications and risks: 
 
The following Corporate Performance Indicators rated as „Red‟ or „Amber‟ could 

potentially have equality and social inclusion implications for a number of different 

social groups if performance does not improve: 
 

 H3 – Average void to re-let times 

 ASCOF 1C(ii) – Direct payments as a percentage of self-directed support (%) 

 L7 - Total non-elective admissions in to hospital (general & acute), all-age, per 

100,000 population 

 CY15 - Number of new in-house foster carers 

 PH3b – Percentage of eligible people receiving an NHS Health Check 

 CI1 – Sickness absence rate per annum per employee 

 (ex) NI075 - Percentage of pupils who achieve 5 or more A*-C grades at 

GCSE, including Maths and English, at Key Stage 4 

 
The commentary for each indicator provides further detail on steps that will be taken to 

improve performance and mitigate these potential inequalities. 

 

 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
The Corporate Plan 2011-14 and „Plan on a Page‟ 2014-15 are available on the Living 

Ambition page on the Havering Council website at:  

 
http://www.havering.gov.uk/Pages/Campaigns/living-ambition-our-20-year-vision.aspx 
 

Page 16

http://www.havering.gov.uk/Pages/Campaigns/living-ambition-our-20-year-vision.aspx


 1 

Appendix 1: Annual Corporate Performance Report 2014/15 
 
Key 

RAG Rating Direction of Travel (DOT)   Description 

Green On or within 10% of the annual target   Short Term: Performance is better than the previous quarter 
Long Term: Performance is better than last year 

  Corporate Plan Indicator 

(C) Outturns reported cumulatively 

(S) Outturns reported as snapshot 

(R) Outturns reported as rolling year 

(A) Outturns reported as annual figure 

Amber 
More than 10% off the annual target and 
where performance has improved or been 
maintained compared to last year 

 Short Term: Performance is the same as the previous quarter 
Long Term: Performance is the same as last year 

 

 

Red 
More than 10% off the annual target and 
where performance has not improved 
compared to last year 

 Short Term: Performance is worse than the previous quarter 
Long Term: Performance is worse than last year 

   

 

 

All new Corporate Performance Indicators for 2015/16 are towards the bottom of the document. 

Environment - to ensure a clean, safe and green borough  
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

SCO1 
 

(C) 

Residual 
household waste 

per household 
(kg) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

664 kg 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

640 kg 
(494kg – Q3 

time lag) 

 
 
 

512 kg 
(Q3 time lag) 

 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
342 kg 
(Q2) 

 

 
500 kg 

(Q3 time 
lag) 

Data comes from the East London Waste 
Authority (ELWA) and lags by at least 8 
weeks.  The residual household waste is 
within target tolerance though slightly 
higher than the same period last year. 
London has seen residual waste increase by 
3% year on year whilst Havering saw an 
increase of 2% last year. Rises in waste costs 
still pose a significant financial challenge 
with the levy predicted to increase by £1m+ 
every year until 2027, which is why we 
focus heavily on minimising waste through a 

Streetcare 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 17



 2 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

number of borough-wide schemes, such as 
a compostable sack service, Love Food Hate 
Waste workshops, Real Nappies, Give and 
Take days, Sew and Swish workshops and 
more, which is hoped to help reverse the 
declining trend. 

SCO2 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
household waste 

sent for reuse, 
recycling & 
composting 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

36% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

36% 
(Q3 target) 

 

 
34% 

(26,381 of 78,379) 

(Q3 time lag) 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
36% 

(19,229 of 
53,997) 

(Q2) 

 

 33% 

Data comes from ELWA and lags by at least 
8 weeks. The percentage of household 
waste recycled from October to December 
(34%) is on target and performance is better 
than the same period last year (33%). 

Streetcare 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

SCO6 
 

(A) 

Number of people 
killed and 

seriously injured 
on roads 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
48 50 

 
 

51  
(2013) 

 
(GREEN) 

- N/A  
78 

(2012) 

The latest data that is available is for the full 
year of 2013. The figure of 51 shows a 35% 
improvement on the previous year. The 
data ranks Havering 9

th
 best out of the 33 

London boroughs. A number of safety 
improvement schemes have been 
implemented this year which has helped to 
reduce casualty numbers. 

Streetcare 
Reported to 

Department for 
Transport and TfL 

by Met Police 

SC07 
 

(C) 

Number of fly 
tipping incidents 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
3,000 3,500 

 
 
 

2,914 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
2,144 

 
 3,620 

Performance is significantly better than 
target with 2,914 incidents reported over 
the year.  This is 586 fewer incidents than 
target and 706 fewer incidents than the 
same period last year. This is largely due to 
a new system that involves manually 
removing extraneous reports from CRM to 
improve the accuracy of the data. However, 
it should be noted that while keeping the 
streets clean, many fly-tips are removed by 
front-line staff and not recorded. New 
technology will be introduced in the near 
future allowing staff to record all fly-tips, 
improving the Council’s knowledge of the 
problem, and helping address some of the 
causes. This will in turn increase the number 
of recorded incidents. 

Streetcare 
 

Reported to 
Department for 
Environment, 
Food & Rural 

Affairs (DEFRA) 

P
age 18



 3 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

SC04 
 

(C) 

Parking income 
against budget (£) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
£4,764,420 £3,964,420 

 
 
 
 

£3,675,348 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

£2,699,680 
 

 £3,497,986 

Car parking income is higher than the same 
period last year, but slightly lower than 
target. Due to significant changes in the 
parking regime, the target for 2015/16 is 
considerably higher than previous years. 
Increased manual enforcement activity has 
offset the loss of income following 
legislative changes that reduced use of 
CCTV cars. Early indications suggest that the 
additional income target of £1m will be very 
challenging. Officers are closely monitoring 
performance and considering ways the 
financial target can be met.   

Streetcare 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

SC05 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
missed collections 

put right within 
target 

 

(Collected the same day if 
reported by midday; 

collected by midday the 
next working day if 

reported after midday) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

This will not 
be a 

corporate 
indicator in 

2015/16 

93% 

 
 
 

66% 
(3,244 of 4,938)  

 
 

(RED) 

 

 
 

62% 
(2,469 of 

3,959)  

 

 
 

95% 

 

Collections were severely disrupted in 
August due to a fire at the waste 
management facility.  Since then, there 
have been issues with IT systems and 
processes, and although performance has 
improved month on month, it has been 
impossible to recover the cumulative 
position for the year. 

Streetcare 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

R8 
 

(A) 

Greenhouse gas 
emissions from 
Local Authority 

estate and 
operations 

(tonnes CO2) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

21,000 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

22,000 

TBC  
(August 2015) 
 

(NOT 
AVAILABLE) 

- N/A - 21,243 
This outturn is not available until August 
2015 

Policy and 
Performance 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 19



 4 

Learning - to champion education and learning for all 
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

LA1 
 

(C) 

Number of 
apprentices (aged 
16-18) recruited 
in the borough 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

 
660 

AY 2014/15 

(Target in 
new 

Corporate 
Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

600 
AY 2013/14 

 
 

680 
AY 2013/14 

 
(GREEN) 

 
530 

AY 2013/14 
(Q3) 

 
643 

AY 2012/13 

There have been 80 more apprentices 
recruited in the borough (680) than target 
(600) and 37 more than the same period 
last year (643).  This is due to the Raising 
Participation Age (RPA) campaign, as well as 
activities conducted during National 
Apprenticeship Week.   

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

LA5 
 

(A) 

Percentage of 3 
and 4 year olds 

who have access 
to an early 
education 

entitlement place 
if their parents 

wish 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

90% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

96% 

 
 
 
 

102% 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A  101% 

The proportion of parents making the 
choice to put their children in early 
education exceeds the DfT expectation 
(96%) with Havering achieving 102% take up 
rate, which is one per cent higher than 
performance last year.  The DfT advises 
that, in some cases, local authority take-up 
rates can exceed 100%. This is because 
population estimates at lower geographic 
levels, such as a local authority, are subject 
to a greater degree of uncertainty than at 
national level. Target this year is reduced 
due to changes in requirements for this 
measure, which will be very difficult 
to meet. In particular, the eligibility criteria 
has changed and now relates to families 
income thresholds rather than referrals.  

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA6 
 

(S) 

Percentage of 
Early Years 

providers judged 
Good or 

Outstanding 
by Ofsted 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

80% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

75% 

 
 

80% 
(231 of 287) 

 

(GREEN) 

 
76% 

(223 of 
295) 

 
75% 

 

Performance (80%) is better than target 
(75%) and the same period last year (75%).  
This is due to the continuation of efficient 
processes, which ably support child-minders 
and PVI (private, voluntary and 
independent) settings to achieve an Ofsted 
grading of good or above. 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

P
age 20



 5 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

LA9 
 

(A) 

Schools below the 
floor standard 

where fewer than 
60% of pupils 

achieve Level 4 or 
above in Reading, 

Writing and 
Maths at Key 

Stage 2 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
0 of 49 0 of 49 

 
 
 

0 of 49 
 

 
(GREEN) 

- N/A  1 of 49 

Havering has an excellent record with 
schools remaining above the floor standard 
with none below in the 2013/14 academic 
year, an improvement on 2012/13 when 
one school was below the floor standard. 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

LA10 
 

(A) 

Schools below the 
floor stand where 
fewer than 40% of 

pupils achieve 5 
or more A*-C 
grades at Key 

Stage 4 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

This will not 
be a 

corporate 
indicator in 

2015/16 

0 of 18 

 
 
 

0 of 18 
 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A  0 of 18 
Havering is one of the few local authorities 
that has never had a secondary school 
below the floor standard. 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

(ex) 
NI117 

 

(S) 

Percentage of 16 
to 19 year olds 
(school years 

12-14) who are 
not in education, 
employment or 
training (NEET) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

4.0% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

4.0% 

 
 

3.0% 
 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
4.4% 

 

 

 4.1% 

Performance has improved (3%) and is 
lower than last year (4.1%). This has been 
achieved by continuing to track young 
learners using the targeting toolkit to 
identify potential people who are NEET and 
ensure early intervention. 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA13 
 

(A) 

Achievement gap 
between pupils 
eligible for free 

school meals and 
their peers, at Key 

Stage 2 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

16% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

20% 

 
 

 
 
 

16% 
 

 
 

(GREEN) 
 

- N/A - N/A 

It is not possible to compare performance 
with the previous year as the measure has 
changed; however, it is considerably (4%) 
better than target (20%). Attainment at Key 
Stage 2 has improved for all pupils, whether 
disadvantaged or not. However, 
disadvantaged pupils have improved at a 
faster rate thereby reducing the gap from -
20% points in 2013 to -16% points in 2014 
due to target work. The gap is now below 
the national average and below that of 
statistical neighbours against which 
Havering is ranked 1

st
.
 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

P
age 21



 6 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

LA14 
 

(A) 

Achievement gap 
between pupils 
eligible for free 

school meals and 
their peers, at Key 

Stage 4 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

28% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

23% 

 
 
 

25% 
 

(GREEN) 
 

- N/A  24% 

Havering is in the top 25% of local 
authorities and 2.9% below the national 
average. 
In 2016, schools will no longer work to 5 A-
Cs at GCSE level, but will move on to the 
new Attainment 8 programme. This will be 
a very turbulent period affecting teaching 
methods and progress levels of children. In 
addition, entry patterns will be different, 
hence the target has been changed to 28% 
in 2015/16 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

(ex) 
NI075 

 
(A) 

Percentage of 
pupils who 

achieve 5 or more 
A*-C grades at 
GCSE, including 

Maths and 
English, at Key 

Stage 4 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

In line with 
national 
target 

68% 

 
 
 

60% 
 
 

(RED) 

- N/A  64% 

Performance is below the target set 
because there have been changes to the 
examination system during the last two 
years, which affected outcomes in Havering 
and nationally.  However, attainment 
remains above national and statistical 
neighbour averages and is broadly in line 
with the London average. Havering 
nationally ranks 35

th
 of 152, and ranks 2

nd
 

against statistical neighbours, only behind 
Bexley. 

Learning & 
Achievement 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

 

Towns and Communities - to provide economic, social and cultural opportunities in thriving towns and villages  
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

CL2 
 

(C) 

Number of 
physical library 

visits 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
1,602,271 1,602,276 

 
 

1,668,460 
 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 

 
1,276,414 

 

 

 
 

1,674,688 
 

The annual target has been achieved, with 
66,189 more physical visits than the target 
of 1,602,271 visits. However, performance 
is slightly worse than last year, with 6,228 
fewer physical library visits.  

Culture & 
Leisure 

 

Reported to 
The Chartered 

Institute of Public 
Finance & 

Accountancy 

P
age 22



 7 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

R2 
 

(C) 
 

This will 
be R5 in 
2015/16 

Net external 
funding secured 

through 
regeneration 
initiatives (£) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

£2,000,000 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

£2,000,000 

 
 
 

£5,628,965 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

£5,628,965 

 

 
 

 
£4,233,195 

 

Over the year, £5,628,965 of external 
funding was secured through regeneration 
initiatives; almost three times higher than 
target (£2,000,000).  A large amount of 
funding is for Crossrail complementary 
measures, while funding was also secured 
through the Heritage Lottery Fund and 
Department for Work and Pensions. 

Economic 
Development 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

R3 
 

(C) 
 

This will 
be R1 in 
2015/16 

Number of 
businesses 

accessing advice 
through 

regeneration 
initiatives 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

500 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

700 

 
 

875 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 
 

 
658 

 

 
 
 

 
1,017 

 

Although (142) fewer businesses have 
accessed advice through regeneration 
initiatives since last year, there were still 
175 more than target (700). A new ICT 
system is now being used to record all 
interactions, which from 2015/16 will be 
able to provide a more detailed breakdown. 
This indicator will become R1 in 2015/16 
reports and will only refer to established 
businesses accessing advice through 
regeneration initiatives, while another 
indicator (R2) will measure only start-up 
companies accessing advice via the Business 
Start-up Programme, which is why the 
target for this indicator is lower for 2015/16 
(500). 

Economic 
Development 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

H1 
 

(S) 

Percentage of 
Leaseholder 

Service Charge 
Arrears collected 
(excluding major 

works) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

100% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

93% 

 
 

98% 
 

 
(GREEN) 

 
 
 

 
85% 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 

93% 

 

The percentage of Leaseholder Service 
Charge Arrears collected (98%) is better 
than target (93%) and last year (93%).  In 
particular, legal action has allowed the 
Council to secure old service charge debt, 
which has contributed to reducing the 
overall balance. 

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

H2 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
repairs completed 
on time (including 

services 
contractors)  

 

(Target completion 
date is determined by 
the system from the 

priority code) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

90% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

90% 

 
 
 

86% 
(27,218 of 31,616)  

 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 
84% 

(18,818 of 
22,410)  

 

 
 
 

 
88% 

 

While the percentage of repairs completed 
on time (86%) was worse than target (90%) 
and the same period last year (88%) it still 
fell within target tolerance.  With the start 
of a new contractor partnership, the 
contract is being closely monitored to 
ensure performance remains on target. 

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 23



 8 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

H4 
 

(C) 

Number of homes 
made decent 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

96.08% 
(9,342) 

1,291 

 
 
 

1,291 

 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
666 

 
 1,078 

The final year of the decent homes 
programme completed on target with a 
final tranche of 1,291 homes being made 
decent (determined by the DCLG).  The 
Programme improved the condition of 
homes for social housing tenants and 
vulnerable households in private sector 
accommodation. The target will change to a 
percentage value for 2015/16 to allow 
benchmarking against other local 
authorities. In addition, the programme will 
change, and will become about maintaining 
all social housing at decent homes standard, 
and hence the target is much higher than 
previous years based on managed stock of 
9,724 homes.  

Housing 
 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

H5 
 

(S) 

Percentage of 
rent arrears 

against rent debit 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

2.40% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

2.50% 

 
 

2.07% 
 

(snapshot) 

 
(GREEN) 

 
 

2.15% 

 
 2.14% 

The percentage of rent arrears against rent 
debit collected has been better than target 
(2.50%) and last year (2.14%).  Continued 
close working with the Welfare Reform and 
Neighbourhood Services Team has ensured 
residents are receiving appropriate advice 
and support to reduce rent debit. 

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

HNS14 
 

(C) 

Number of 
persons enrolled 

on Keys for 
Change 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

Target has 
been met. 

This will not 
be a 

corporate 
indicator in 

2015/16 

69 

 
 
 

82 
 
 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 
60 

 
 67 

The overall target for this programme was 
to assist 136 people over two years 
(November 2013 to October 2015).  In 
2013/14, 67 people were enrolled on the 
programme.  A further 82 people have been 
enrolled over the last year, exceeding the 
target with 149 people in total.  

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

L7 
(ex) 

NI155 
 

(A) 

Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

300 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

375 

 
 

493 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A  366 

An extra 127 affordable homes were built 
over the year, and performance (493) far 
exceeds the target (375). The main areas 
were in Harold Wood (old Harold Wood 
hospital site), Rainham, Elm Park, Harold Hill 
and Romford.  

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 24



 9 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

DC4 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
appeals allowed 
against refusal of 

planning 
permission  

Smaller 
is 

Better 
33% 30% 

 
 
 
 

31% 
(31 of 101) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
28% 

(18 of 64) 

 

 25% 

The percentage of appeals allowed against 
refusal of planning permission is within 
target tolerance (31%), even though it is 
less strong than last year (25%). The service 
is due to update its planning polices in 
2016/17, and performance is expected to 
improve with more up-to-date polices, 
hence for the coming year the target has 
been set in line with the trend in 
performance over past years. Performance 
is still considerably better than the national 
average (36%). 

Regulatory 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

(ex) 
NI157a 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
major applications 
processed within 

13 weeks  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

62% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

60% 

 
 
 

85% 
(33 of 39) 

 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
73% 

(19 of 26) 

 

 62% 

The percentage of major applications 
processed within 13 weeks has risen (85%) 
compared with last year (62%). However, 
these include extension of time 
agreements, which extend the statutory 
timeframe for decision. Previous years did 
not, nor will they in 2015/16, hence they 
are not directly comparable, however a RAG 
rating and DOT has been given.   

Regulatory 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

(ex) 
NI157b 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
minor 

applications 
processed within 

8 weeks 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

65% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

65% 

 
 
 

74% 
(303 of 408) 

 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 
63% 

(187 of 
295) 

 

 36% 

The percentage of minor applications 
processed within 8 weeks (74%) is higher 
than target (65%) and significantly better 
than last year (36%). This was the result of 
greater use of extension of time 
agreements, which means the data is not 
directly comparable with the previous year 
or 2015/16, however a RAG rating and DOT 
has been given.   

Regulatory 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

(ex) 
NI157c 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
other applications 
processed within 

8 weeks  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

80% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

80% 

 
 

90% 
(1,326 of 1,473) 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 
88% 

(1,008 of 
1,152) 

 

 64% 

Performance (90%) is better than target 
(80%) and significantly better than last year 
(64%).  This again includes extension of time 
agreements; hence it is not directly 
comparable with the previous year, 
however a RAG rating and DOT has been 
given.   

Regulatory 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

P
age 25



 10 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

H3 
 

(A) 

Average void to 
re-let times  

Smaller 
is 

Better 
22 days 25 days 

 
 
 
 

33 days 
 
 
 

(RED) 

 

 
33 days 

 
 28 days 

Performance (33 days) was considerably 
worse than target (25 days) and last year 
(28 days). Helping those affected by welfare 
reforms to downsize resulted in more 
empty homes activity. In addition, changes 
to work contractors also had an impact, 
resulting in backlogs. 
 
Corrective Action A comprehensive 
recovery programme was implemented in 
February 2015, which has reduced the 
numbers of empty properties available to 
re-let. An action plan is available on 
request. Contractor performance on 
turnaround (average 25 days) is slowly 
improving and, as at 19 June 2015, stood at 
22 void general needs properties, with an 
average turnaround time during April and 
May of 15 days. 

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

 
 

Individuals - to value and enhance the lives of our residents  
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

ASCOF 
1C(i) 

 

(S) 

Percentage of 
people using 

social care who 
receive self-

directed support 
and those 

receiving direct 
payments  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

82% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

80% 

 
 
 
 

75.4% 
(1,536 of 2,036) 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
73% 

(1,495 of 
2,052) 

 

 
47.7% 

 

Performance (75.4%) is within target 
tolerance (80%).  Although a DOT and RAG 
rating has been given, a direct comparison 
is not possible due to a change in 
definition.  Self-Direction has now been 
embedded as part of the Lean Review with 
different ways of working piloted, and now 
being rolled out across the service. This 
includes looking at external brokerage and 
support planning services, funded through 
personal budgets, such as 
‘MySupportBroker’.  
We continue to ensure that, wherever 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

P
age 26



 11 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

(GREEN) appropriate, client packages are offered via 
Self Directed Support and that these are 
recorded in a timely and accurate manner. 

ASCOF 
1F 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
adults in contact 
with secondary 
mental health 

services in paid 
employment  

Bigger 
is 

Better 
6.5% 5.5% 

 
 
 

6.8% 
(31 of 459) 

 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

 

 
7.0% 

(34 of 487) 
 

 
5.1% 

 

Performance (6.8%) is better than target 
(5.5%) and an improvement on last year’s 
outturn (5.1%).  There are currently 31 
individuals in active employment compared 
to 28 service users last year.  Mental Health 
Services are committed to the recovery 
model and work closely with service users 
to support them to fulfil their potential in 
accessing employment opportunities. The 
service exceeded expectations significantly 
in 2014/15, therefore the 2015/16 target 
has not been set higher than the outturn 
but at what is felt to be achievable.  

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
1G 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
adults with 

learning 
disabilities who 
live in their own 

home or with 
their family  

Bigger 
is 

Better 
63% 62% 

 
 

63% 
(319 of 509) 

 
(GREEN) 

 
 

 
46% 

(217 of 
468) 

 

 
 

61% 
 

Performance continues to remain positive 
and has improved on last year. There are 
currently 319 individuals (63% of service 
users) with learning disabilities living in their 
own home or with their family compared to 
61% of service users during the same period 
last year. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
1H 

 

(C) 

Percentage of 
adults in contact 
with secondary 
mental health 
services living 

independently, 
with or without 

support  

Bigger 
is 

Better 
94% 94% 

 
 
 

88% 
(405 of 459) 

 
 

 
(GREEN) 

 
 

 
89% 

(433 of 
487) 

 

 
 

93% 
 

Performance (88%) is less than last year 
(93%) with 405 service users living 
independently. We will work closely with 
North East London Foundation Trust to 
continue to remove the barriers mental 
health service users face in accessing and 
remaining in settled accommodation, and 
coming out of residential care to settle back 
into the community. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
2A(ii) 

 

(C) 

Rate of 
permanent 

admissions to 
residential and 

nursing care 
homes per 

100,000 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
598.1 584.6 

 

 
606.9 

 
 

 

 

 
437.4 

 
 584.7 

The rate of permanent admissions (606.9 
per 100,000) is higher than target (584.6 per 
100,000) and, due to the change in 
definition to account for Self Funders, the 
outturn is slightly worse than last year 
(584.7 per 100,000).  There is continued 
pressure for placements in the borough and 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

P
age 27



 12 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

population (aged 
65+) 

(GREEN) work is continuing (e.g. implementing 
robust panel processes) to ensure that 
admissions are timely and appropriate. 

ASCOF 
2B (i) 

 
(A) 

Percentage of 
older people 

(65+) who were 
still at home 91 

days after 
discharge from 

hospital into 
reablement 

services 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

87.5% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

87% 

 
 

80.7% 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A  80.7% 

This indicator is monitored over a 3-month 
period looking at patients discharged from 
hospital. The percentage of older people 
who were still at home 91 days after 
discharge from hospital into reablement 
services is on target and the same as last 
year (80.7%) 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
2C(ii) 

 

(C) 

Rate of delayed 
transfers of care 

from hospital 
attributable to 

Adult Social Care 
(ASC) and Health 

per 100,000 
population 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

2.8 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

3.0 

 

 
2.0 

 

 
(GREEN) 

 

 
1.8 

 
 

 
1.8 

 

The rate of delayed transfers of care 
attributed to ASC and Health (2.0 per 
100,000) is better than target (3.0 per 
100,000) but slightly worse than last year 
(1.8 per 100,000).  There are slightly more 
delays occurring in the Acute sector 
compared to Non-Acute sector. The Joint 
Assessment and Discharge Team will 
continue to work with Health colleagues to 
maintain positive performance in this area 
and improve discharge processes. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
2C(iii) 

 

(C) 

Rate of delayed 
transfers of care 
attributable to 

Adult Social Care 
(ASC) only per 

100,000 
population 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

1.0 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

1.0 

 

 
1.1 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
0.8 

 
 0.8 

While performance has been relatively 
stable throughout the year, the rate of 
delayed transfers of care attributed to Adult 
Social Care only (1.1 per 100,000) is within 
target tolerance (1.0 per 100,000) but 
slightly worse than last year (0.8 of 
100,000).  To date, ASC has been 
responsible for 24 delays (4 acute and 20 
non-acute). 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

L3 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
people who 

return to Adult 
Social Care 91 

days after 
completing 
reablement  

Smaller 
is 

Better 

5.0% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

5.5% 

 
 

 
4.4% 

(28 of 640)  
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
 

4.0% 
(20 of 494)  

 

 
 

5.9% 

This indicator considers the success of 
reablement and measures the percentage 
of service users who return after a 
successful reablement phase.  Over the 
year, only 28 service users (4.4%) have 
returned after reablement requiring a 
longer term package of care, which is 
considerably better than target (5.5%) and 
last year (5.9%). 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 28



 13 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

L6 
 

(A) 

Percentage of 
carers who 

request 
information and 

advice 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
75% 69% 

 
 

88.9% 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A 
 

 
32.1% 

The percentage of carers who request 
information and advice is above target, 
from 32.1% in 2013/14 to 88.9% now. 
Performance has significantly improved 
within this area. The data is taken from the 
bi-annual statutory survey. From 2015/16 
we aim for this to be monitored as part of 
the carers assessment process and the 
Better Care Fund submissions. The 2015/16 
target was signed off by NHS England prior 
to the outturns being available.  

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

L8 
 

(A) 

Patient/service 
user experience 
(managing long 

term conditions) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
34 33 

 
 

32.1 
 

(GREEN) 

- N/A  32.1 
Data is taken from the GP patient survey 
and will be monitored throughout 2015-16 
as part of the Better Care Fund submissions. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

CY2 
 

(S) 

Percentage of 
looked after 

children (LAC) 
placements 

lasting at least 2 
years 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
80% 80% 

 
 
 

83% 
(44 of 53) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
85% 

(45 of 53) 

 

 79% 

83% of our eligible Looked After Children 
(44 of 53) aged under 16 years have been in 
the same placement for at least 2 years.  As 
well as performing above target (80%), we 
are also performing significantly above the 
England average (67%). 

Children’s 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

CY13 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
Child Protection 
(CP) Plans lasting 

more than 24 
months 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
4.0% 4.0% 

 
 

4.0% 
(7 of 173) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 
4.0% 

(5 of 124) 

 

 
 

4.7% 

By the end of the year, only 7 of the 173 
children (4.0%) that had come off a Child 
Protection Plan had remained on their Plan 
for more than 24 months.  This is the same 
as target (4.0%) and better than last year 
(4.7%). 

Children’s 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

P
age 29



 14 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

N18 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
children 

becoming the 
subject of a Child 
Protection Plan 
for a second or 

subsequent time 
within 2 years 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

5.0% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

5.0% 

 
 

1.6% 
(4 of 251) 

 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

 

 
2.4% 

(4 of 165) 

 

 5.8% 

Over the year, 251 children had become the 
subject of a Child Protection Plan.  Of these, 
4 children (1.6%) from one sibling group 
became the subject of a Plan for the second 
time within 2 years.  This is better than 
target (5.0%) and better than last year 
(5.8%). 

Children’s 
Services 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 
 

(as it refers to 2 
years) 

L5 
 

(C) 

Total number of 
Careline and 

Telecare users in 
the borough 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

5,150 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

5,000 

 
 
 

4,725 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

 
4,659 

 

 
 

4,604 

There are currently 4,725 Careline and 
Telecare users in the borough.  While 
performance is still within target tolerance, 
there are 275 fewer than target (5,000) but 
121 more than the same period last year 
(4,604).  The winter season always has a 
negative effect on this indicator and a 
marketing plan is being drawn together to 
promote the service. 

Housing 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

ASCOF 
2A(i) 

 

(C) 

Rate of 
permanent 

admissions to 
residential and 

nursing care 
homes per 

100,000 
population (aged 

18-64) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

10.0 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

9.0 

 
 
 

9.6 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
7.6 

 

 
 

 

9.7 

The rate of permanent admissions for 
individuals aged between 18-64 years (9.6 
per 100,000) is worse than target (9 per 
100,000) but better than the same period 
last year (9.7 per 100,000).  However it is 
useful to note that there were only 14 total 
admissions to permanent placements in 
2014/15. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

ASCOF 
1C(ii) 

 

(S) 

Direct payments 
as a percentage of 

self-directed 
support  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

45% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan agreed 
18 March) 

 

45% 

 
 
 
 

36.1% 
(736 of 2,036) 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 
37% 

(761 of 
2,052) 

 

 
14.6% 

 

Performance is currently below target (45%) 
with 736 people currently in receipt of a 
Direct Payment out of a possible 2,036.  A 
direct comparison in performance is not 
possible due to a change in definition; 
however, a RAG rating and DOT has been 
given.  
Corrective Action Nationally it is 
acknowledged that the most challenging 
cohort of users to encourage take up of 
Direct Payment is older people, of which 
Havering has the most in London. However, 
the roll-out of the pilots from the Lean 
Review, such as developing a specialist 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

P
age 30



 15 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

(AMBER) 

support planning function, should improve 
performance in 2015/16. This function will 
enable support planners to work closely 
with the service user to develop robust 
person-centred support plans with the aim 
of increasing the uptake of self-directed 
support and direct payments. 
Commissioning is also developing plans, as 
part of the ASC Market Position Statement, 
to encourage diversification of the market 
in terms of the service offer for people with 
personal budgets and direct payments, 
including the personal assistant market. 

CY15 
 

(C) 

Number of new 
in-house foster 

carers 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
15 15 

 
 
 

12 
 
 

(AMBER) 

 11  8 

Although the target for this measure was 
not met, the placement stability indicator 
for looked after children are all green and 
have met or exceeded their targets. In 
addition, performance is better than last 
year.  
Corrective Action There is a need to recruit 
foster carers for teenagers and so our 
recruitment campaign continues to focus on 
this difficult area. 

Children’s 
Services 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

L7 
 

(A) 

Total non-elective 
admissions in to 
hospital (general 
& acute), all-age, 

per 100,000 
population 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

 
Q1 – 2,692     
Q2 – 2,730     
Q3 – 2,739 
Q4 – TBC 

 
 

2,582 
(Q4 target) 

 
 
 
 

2,729 
(Q4 outturn) 

 
 

 
 
 

(RED) 

- N/A - N/A 

Total non-elective admissions into hospital 
(general & acute), all-age, per 100,000 
population has not met the target (2,582) 
with 147 more admissions. Though, 
according to the Council’s definition, 
performance against this indicator would be 
RAG rated Green (as it is within 10% of the 
target), it has been RAG rated Red as it is a 
Better Care Fund (BCF) indicator, with 
access to funding being directly linked to 
the achievement of the target.  
Corrective Action 
A deep-dive by colleagues in the Clinical 
Commissioning Group and Commissioning 
Support Unit has been commissioned with 
the outcome to be determined. Monitored 
as part of the Better Care Fund submissions. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

P
age 31



 16 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

13 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
children who wait 

less than 16 
months between 
entering care and 

moving in with 
their adopting 

family  

Bigger 

is 

Better 
70% 60% 

 
 
 

35% 
(6 of 17) 

 
 

(RED) 

 
41% 

(7 of 17)  

 
52% 

(12 of 23) 
 

Over the year, 6 of the 17 children (35%) 
were waiting no longer than 16 months to 
move in with their adopting family.  This is 
worse than target (60%), however it is 
important to note a change in definition 
(from 20 months to 16 months) which 
makes a direct comparison difficult.   

Children’s 
Services 

 

Reported to 
Department for 
Education (DfE) 

 

Value - to deliver high customer satisfaction and a stable council tax 
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

 CS7 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
Corporate 

Complaints 
completed within 
10 days (15 days 
from 2015/16) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

95% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

90% 

 
 

 
86% 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

 

 
87% 

 
 73% 

The percentage of Corporate Complaints 
completed within 10 days (86%) was within 
target (90%) and significantly better than 
last year (75%).  Streetcare and Housing 
both continue to receive the majority of 
complaints. The indicator will change to 
percentage of Corporate Complaints 
completed within 15 days from 2015/16. 

Corporate 
Health 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

CS8 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
Corporate 

Complaints 
escalated to 

Stage 2  

Smaller 
is 

Better 

10% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

10% 

 
 
 

6% 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

 
6% 

 
 6% 

The percentage of Corporate Complaints 
escalated to Stage 2 (6%) was better than 
target (10%) and remains the same as last 
year (6%).  With the majority of complaints 
addressed to a satisfactory standard within 
each Service at Stage 1, very few complaints 
are escalated to Stage 2. 

Corporate 
Health 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 32



 17 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

ISS10 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
suppliers paid 

within 30 days of 
receipt, by 

Transactional 
Team, by invoice  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

95% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

95% 

 
 
 

95% 
(105,139 of 

110,133) 
 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
 

95% 
(76,628 of 

80,276) 
 

 

 
 

96% 
 

There were 105,139 invoices paid within 30 
days of receipt out of a total of 110,133 
invoices received (95%).  This is on target 
(95%) and only slightly worse than the same 
period last year (96%).  As the Council 
increases the use of online invoicing 
(iSupplier), the amount of paper invoices 
should decrease, which will improve the 
speed of processing. 

Corporate 
Health 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

CS1 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
customers satisfied 

with the Contact 
Centre  

Bigger 
is 

Better 
88% 85% 

 
 

88% 
(17,048 of 19,313) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
90% 

(13,852 of 
15,429) 

 

 89% 

Of the 19,313 customers that completed a 
satisfaction survey in the last year, 17,048 
(88%) were satisfied with the Contact 
Centre (Call Centre and the PASC).  
Performance is better than target (85%) 
though slightly worse than last year (89%). 
The number of surveys carried out is less 
than last year (21,779), due to reduced 
service in the PASC, which provided fewer 
opportunities to offer face-to-face surveys.  

Customer 
Services 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

CS2 
 

(C) 
Call abandon rates  

Smaller 
is 

Better 

10% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

10% 

 
 
 

8.7% 
(37,616 of 
433,786) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
 

8.7% 
(26,904 of 
309,736) 

 

 
 

12% 
 

Performance is significantly better than last 
year (12%) with only 8.7% of calls 
abandoned. This improved performance is 
despite the number of calls increasing by 
106,349 this year due to a channel shift 
away from face-to-face contact and more 
services migrating into the Contact Centre. 

Customer 
Services 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

CS3 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
automated 

transactions 

Bigger 
is 

Better 

35% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

30% 

 
30% 

(213,199 of 
703,212)  

 
(GREEN) 

 
 

29% 
(149,624 of 

522,917)  
 

- 
New 

indicator 

The percentage of automated transactions 
is on target (30%). Recent initiatives such as 
the introduction of applying and paying for 
parking permits online and green waste 
renewal have helped increase performance. 
This was a new indicator for 2014/15 
therefore DOT is not provided. 

Customer 
Services 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

P
age 33



 18 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

CS1 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
Council Tax 

collected  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

97% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

97% 

 

 
 

97% 
(£120.7m) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 
 

86% 
(£106.6m) 

 

 

 97% 

There has been £120.7m of Council Tax 
collected over the last year (97%). This is on 
target (97%) and the same as last year 
(97%).  The strategy to improve collection 
worked well in 2014/15 but will be revised 
for 2015/16 to take account of local 
changes such as the Council Tax Support 
scheme.    

Exchequer & 
Transactional 

Services 
 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

CS2 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
National Non-

Domestic Rates 
collected (NNDR)  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

98% 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

98% 

 
 

97% 
(£72.7m) 

 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 
84% 

(£63.4m) 

 
 97% 

Performance is within tolerance of the 
target, and the same as last year. The 
targets for the year were set in 2013/14, 
based on the profiled income received in 
that year. As part of government measures 
to assist businesses, however, payments 
can now be made over 12 instalments 
rather than 10. Therefore, the monthly 
collectable figure has reduced. 

Exchequer & 
Transactional 

Services 
 

Reported to 
Department 

Communities & 
Local Govt (DCLG) 

CS3 
 

(C) 

Speed of 
processing new 

Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax 

Support claims  

Smaller 
is 

Better 

20 days 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 
 

24 days 

 
 
 

18 days 
 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
18 days 

 
 26 days 

New claim processing is prioritised above all 
other benefit claim types to ensure people 
in need receive help with their rent and 
council tax payments, therefore 
performance has comfortably exceeded 
target in 2014/15. Additional resources 
were also made available to accomplish this 
high level of performance. This strategy will 
be maintained in 2015/16. 

Exchequer & 
Transactional 

Services 
 

Reported to 
Department for 

Work and 
Pensions (DWP) 

CS4 
 

(C) 

Speed of 
processing changes 
in circumstances of 

Housing 
Benefit/Council Tax 
Support claimants  

Smaller 
is 

Better 

12 days 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 
 

15 days 

 
 
 

10 days 

 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
12 days 

 
 12 days 

Exchequer & Transactional Services is 
making efficient use of additional resources 
to maintain and improve benefit processing. 
A number of enhancements were made to 
the core system to automate activities 
which will have contributed positively to 
performance. This is proving successful as 
performance (10 days) is better than target 
(15 days) and better than the same period 
last year (12 days).  

Exchequer & 
Transactional 

Services 
 

Reported to 
Department for 

Work and 
Pensions (DWP) 

P
age 34



 19 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

CI1 
 

(R) 

Sickness absence 
rate per annum per 

employee (days) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

8.5 days 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 

7.6 days 

 
 
 

 
 

10.1 days 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(AMBER) 

 

 
10.2 days 

 
 10.5 days 

Performance (10.1 days) is worse than 
target (7.6 days) but an improvement on 
last year (10.5 days).  Targeted support is 
being provided to managers in areas where 
sickness absence is high, and a Health and 
Wellbeing day was organised for staff in 
March.  Intensive work to reduce sickness 
absence began at the beginning of the year, 
and the results were starting to be seen in 
Q3, when the number of long term absent 
employees went down to 127, and fell 
further to 113 in Q4. The average number of 
days absent is projected to fall to 9.5 days 
by the end of 2015/16 and 8.5 days in 
2016/17. 

Corporate 
Health 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

CS10 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
Member/MP 

Enquiries 
completed within 
10 days (15 days 

from 2015/16) (%) 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
95% 90% 

 
 
 
 
 

78% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(RED) 

 

 
80% 

 
 83% 

The percentage of Member Enquiries 
completed within 10 days (78%) was worse 
than target (90%) and slightly worse than 
last year (83%). This was due to Streetcare 
staff shortages and Housing system failures, 
which created a backlog within the two 
areas that received most enquiries.  
Corrective Action Staff shortages have 
been addressed and complaints/members 
enquiries are now logged on CRM rather 
than Housing’s independent system, to 
mitigate further problems.  

Corporate 
Health 

 

Local 
performance 

indicator 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



 20 

 
 

Partnership Indicators (the Council is not solely responsible for the target and/or performance)  
 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

CSP1 
 

(C) 

Number of 
burglaries reported 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

2,320 
(Target in 

new 
Corporate 

Plan 
agreed 18 

March) 
 

2,465 

 
 
 

1,993 

 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
1,427 

 
 2,396 

There were 472 fewer burglaries reported 
(1,993) than target (2,465) and 403 fewer 
than last year (2,396). Burglary is currently 
exceeding the target of reducing offending 
by 20% by March 2016. 2014/15 has seen a 
reduction in excess of 16% compared to a 
regional average reduction of 13%. 

Corporate 
Policy & 

Community 
 

Reported to 
Mayor’s Office for 

Policing and 
Crime (MOPAC) 

CSP2 
 

(C) 

Number of 
antisocial 

behaviour (ASB) 
incidents 

Smaller 
is 

Better 

 
6,377 

(Target in 
new 

Corporate 
Plan 

agreed 18 
March) 

 

 

 

6,910 

 

 
 
 

4,833 

 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
3,906 

 
 6,748 

There were 2,077 fewer ASB complaints 
reported to the police (4,833) than target 
(6,910), and 1,915 less reports than last 
year (6,748). Some of the reduction may be 
linked to other services, for example, police 
call handlers signposting some complaints 
of ASB, such as noise, fly-tipping and vehicle 
nuisance, to council services. 

Corporate 
Policy & 

Community 
 

Reported to 
Mayor’s Office for 

Policing and 
Crime 

ASCOF 
2C(i)a 

 

(C) 

Overall rate of 
delayed transfers of 
care from hospital 

per 100,000 
population 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
6.0 7.0 

 
 

 
 

4.5 
 
 
 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
4.1 

 
 5.3 

The overall rate of delayed transfers of care 
from hospital (4.5 per 100,000) is better 
than target (7.0 per 100,000) and better 
than the same period last year (5.3 per 
100,000).  Performance in this area is 
continually monitored following the 
creation of the Joint Assessment and 
Discharge Team. 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

P
age 36



 21 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

ASCOF 
2C(i)b 

 

(C) 

Rate of delayed 
transfers of care 

from hospital 
per 100,000 
population 

(monthly average) 

Smaller 
is 

Better 
389.1 403.45 

 

252.4 
 

(GREEN) 

 386.4 - 
New 

indicator 

This was a new indicator for 2014/15 and it 
is therefore not possible to give a DOT, 
however, performance (252.4 per 100,000) 
is strong and well within tolerance of the 
target (403.45 per 100,000). Monitored as 
part of the Better Care Fund submissions 

Adult Social 
Care 

 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

PH3a 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
eligible patients 
offered an NHS 
Health Check  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

20% 
(equates 

to 
13,343) 

(Target in 
new 

Corporate 
Plan 

agreed 18 
March) 

 

20% 
(13,453 of 

67,265) 

 
 

18.7% 
(12,551 of 67,265) 

 
 

(GREEN) 

 

 
14.2% 

(9,529 of 
67,265) 

 

 

 
20.8% 

(14,237 of 
68,358) 

 

Performance (18.7%) is within target 
tolerance (20%) however, it is slightly less 
than last year (20.8%) with 1,686 fewer 
eligible patients being offered an NHS 
Health Check. 

Public Health 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator  
 

(The statutory return 
to the DH uses less 

accurate population 
data) 

PH3b 
 

(C) 

Percentage of 
eligible people 

receiving an NHS 
Health Check  

Bigger 
is 

Better 

This will 
not be a 

corporate 
indicator 

in 
2015/16 

66% 
(8,879 of 
13,453) 

 
 

 
 
 

38.6% 
(5,195 of 13,453) 

 
 

 
 
 

(RED) 

 

 
26.9% 

(3,617 of 
13,453)  

 

 

56.7% 
(6,396 of 
11,280) 

The number of eligible people receiving an 
NHS health check (5,195) is below target 
(8,879) and less than last year (6,396). 
Corrective Action Underperformance 
continues to be addressed by developing 
cluster arrangements with Havering GPs 
Federation, putting in place improvement 
plans, attending nurse and practice 
manager meetings, undertaking training 
and developing marketing materials. 

Public Health 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator  
 

(The statutory return 
to the DH uses less 

accurate population 
data) 

PH2 
 

(A) 

Participation in the 
National Child 
Measurement 

Programme 

Bigger 
is 

Better 
85% 85% 

 
79% Mar 15 

(Year-end 
Available Dec-

15) 
 

(NOT 
AVAILABLE) 

- N/A - 93% 

Performance figures were given in March 
and are based on year-to-date, therefore it 
is not possible to add a RAG rating or DOT, 
as the comparison would be inaccurate. For 
data validation purposes, there is a time lag 
of a calendar year.  

Public Health 
 

Local 
performance 

indicator  
 

(The statutory return 
to the DH uses less 

accurate population 
data) 

P
age 37



 22 

Ref. Indicator Value 
2015/16 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 
Target 

2014/15 
Annual 

Performance 

Short Term 
DOT against 

2014/15 (Q3) 

Long Term DOT 
against 2013/14  

Annual 
Performance 

Comments Service 

PH1 
 

 (C) 

Chlamydia 
diagnoses 

N/A 

This will 
not be a 

corporate 
indicator 

in 
2015/16 

475 

 
 
 
 

403 
 
 

(NOT RAG 
RATED) 

- 

 
302 

 
- 

 
425 

 

Performance (403) is below target (475) and 
worse than last year (425).   
Corrective Action The commissioned 
provider has submitted an action plan that 
focuses on increasing screening by primary 
care and sexual health services. Targeted 
outreach also engages with high risk groups 
less likely to engage with these healthcare 
services (e.g. vulnerable young people and 
young offenders). 

Public Health 
 

Reported to 
Department of 

Health (DH) 

 
 
ADDITIONAL TARGETS SET AS PART OF THE 2015/16 CORPORATE PLAN AND SERVICE PLANS 
 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

SC03 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Number of missed waste 
collections per 100,000 

Smaller is 
Better 

100 N/A N/A N/A 
Streetcare 

 

Local performance indicator 

SC10 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Completion against Street 
Cleansing schedule  

Bigger is 
Better 

82% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

85% 79% 79% 
Streetcare 

 

Local performance indicator 

SC20 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Number of green waste 
customers (green bin) 

Bigger is 
Better 

23,000 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

22,500 22,289 21,894 
Streetcare 

 

Local performance indicator 

SC21 

NEW 
 

Refuse & recycling 
collections completed 

against schedule 

Bigger is 
Better 

93% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

N/A N/A N/A 
Streetcare 

 

Local performance indicator 

P
age 38



 23 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

LA15 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of average 
attendance in Primary 

schools 

Bigger is 
Better 

95.5% 95.2% 95.8% 95.1% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA16 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of average 
attendance in Secondary 

schools 

Bigger is 
Better 

95.2% 95% 94.6% 94.3% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA17 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Primary school persistent 
absence rate 

Smaller is 
better 

3.1% 3.5% 2.6% 3.4% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA18 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Secondary school 
persistent absence rate 

Smaller is 
Better 

5.6% 6.0% 5.6% 6.2% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA21 
 

(A) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of young 
people leaving care with at 

least one GCSE at grade 
A*-C 

Bigger is 
Better 

64% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
60% 57% 63% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

LA26 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of schools 
judged to be Good or 

Outstanding 

Bigger is 
Better 

76% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
85% 82% 79% 

Learning & Achievement 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

V1 

NEW  
 

Number of volunteers 
active as Friends of Parks 

Bigger is 
Better 

110 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
N/A 96 N/A 

Culture & Leisure 
 

Local performance indicator 

P
age 39



 24 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

V2 

NEW  
 

Number of volunteers 
assisting in the running of 

library services 

Bigger is 
Better 

290 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
N/A N/A N/A 

Culture & Leisure 
 

Local performance indicator 

CL13 

NEW  
 

Number of Parks with 
Green Flag Status 

Bigger is 
Better 

9 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

9 9 8 
Culture & Leisure 

 
Local performance indicator 

R2 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Number of potential start-
up businesses accessing 
advice via the Business 

Start-up Programme 

Bigger is 
Better 

25 N/A N/A N/A 
Economic Development 

 

Local performance indicator 

R3 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Reduce collective retail 
and leisure vacancy rate 
for 7 town centres by 2% 

below national average for 
town centres. 

Smaller is 
Better 

National rate minus 2% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
N/A N/A N/A 

Economic Development 
 

Local performance indicator 

HC5 
 

(C) 
 

NEW 
 

Estate inspections 
achieving target score 

Bigger is 
Better 

95% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
100% N/A 100% 

Housing 
 

Local performance indicator 

RS17 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of major 
planning applications 

processed within 13 weeks 
at end of each quarter 
over two year period 

Bigger is 
Better 

50% N/A N/A N/A 

Regulatory Services 
 

Reported to Department 
Communities & Local Govt 

(DCLG) 

P
age 40



 25 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

RS18 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

Percentage of minor 
planning applications 

processed within 8 weeks 
at end of each quarter 
over two year period 

Bigger is 
Better 

60% N/A N/A N/A 

Regulatory Services 
 

Reported to Department 
Communities & Local Govt 

(DCLG) 

RS19 
 

(C) 

NEW 
 

No more than 19% of 
planning decisions on 

major applications decided 
(or subject to non-

determination appeal) in 
any 2 year rolling period 
are overturned at appeal 

within 9 months of the end 
of that 2 year period 

Smaller is 
Better 

19% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

N/A N/A N/A 

Regulatory Services 
 

Reported to Department 
Communities & Local Govt 

(DCLG) 

ASCOF 
1e 

NEW 
 

Adults with learning 
disabilities in paid 

employment 

Bigger is 
Better 

8.7 8.5 8.6 8.3 

Adult Social Care 
 

Reported to Department of 
Health (DH) 

CH21 

NEW 
 

Percentage of looked after 
children (LAC) placed in 

LBH foster care 

Smaller is 
Better 

40% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

N/A 34% 37% 

Children’s Services 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

CH22 

NEW 
 

Percentage of referrals to 
Children’s Social Care 

progressing to assessment 

Bigger is 
Better 

95% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

95% 95% 91% 

Children’s Services 
 

Reported to Department for 
Education (DfE) 

CS3 

NEW 
 

Number of online 
transactions as a % of all 

transactions 

Bigger is 
Better 

35% 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
30% 30.32% N/A 

Customer Services 
 

Local performance indicator 

P
age 41



 26 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

CSP10 

NEW 
 

Repeat Domestic Violence 
cases going to the MARAC 

Smaller is 
Better 

TBC in line with national 
outturn data 

24.50% 17.50% 15.70% 

Corporate Policy & 
Community 

 

Reported to Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime 

CSP3 
NEW 

 
Reduce Robbery 

Smaller is 
Better 

 
399 

(Target in new Corporate 
Plan agreed 18 March) 

 

424 290 274 

Corporate Policy & 
Community 

 

Reported to Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime 

CSP7 

NEW 
 
 

Reduce violence with 
injury  

Smaller is 
Better 

1,158 
(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

1,231 1,630 1,314 

Corporate Policy & 
Community 

 

Reported to Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime 

CET2 

NEW 
 

Number of volunteers 
participating in community 

clean ups 

Bigger is 
Better 

 
 90(Target in new Corporate 

Plan agreed 18 March) 
 

N/A N/A N/A 

Corporate Policy & 
Community 

 

Reported to Mayor’s Office for 
Policing and Crime 

PH4 

NEW 
 

Percentage of new 
patients attending sexual 
health services accepting 

offer of HIV test 

Bigger is 
Better 

75% N/A 71% 67% 

Public Health 
 

Local performance indicator  
 

(The statutory return to the DH uses 
less accurate population data) 

PH5 

NEW 
 

Number of schools 
achieving stated level of 
healthy schools award 

Bigger is 
Better 

N registered = 65 
N Bronze = 25 

N Silver = 8 
N Gold = 2 

N/A 

N registered = 48  
N Bronze = 9  
N Silver = 1  
N Gold = 0 

(YTD) 

N/A 

Public Health 
 

Local performance indicator  
 

(The statutory return to the DH uses 
less accurate population data) 

P
age 42



 27 

Ref. Indicator Value 2015/16 Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Target 
2014/15 

Annual Performance 
2013/14  

Annual Performance 
Service 

PH6 

NEW 
 

Percentage of women 
smoking at Time of 

Delivery 

Smaller is 
Better 

10% N/A 
10.6% (Q3) 

(Year-end Available Jul 
15) 

11.04% 

Public Health 
 

Local performance indicator  
 

(The statutory return to the DH uses 
less accurate population data) 

 
 

P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2: Quarter 4 Demand Pressure Dashboard 2014/15
Taken to Cabinet on 8 July 2015

9
7

,4
7

8
 

9
8

,6
8

0
 

9
9

,8
8

2
 

1
0

1
,0

8
3

 

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

DP 02: Households - GLA Projections 
 

Source: GLA Round SHLAA-based Household Projections, 2013 

2
2

3
,6

2
4

 

2
3

1
,2

7
7

 

2
3

4
,3

3
1

 

2
3

5
,8

4
9

 

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

DP 03: GP Registrations 

14,164 14,592 14,904 15,322 
15,985 16,289 16,855 17,519 
21,175 20,789 20,361 20,406 
20,900 21,369 21,520 19,975 

123,500 124,212 125,902 126,174 

36,421 37,576 38,182 38,594 

6,136 6,462 6,698 6,820 

0

25,000

50,000

75,000

100,000

125,000

150,000

175,000

200,000

225,000

250,000

275,000

2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15

DP 01: Havering Population 

0-4 5-10 11-17 18-24

25-64 65-84 85+

POPULATION 

Using GLA Round Borough Preferred Option Projections 
(2013), Havering’s population is projected to rise at a lower 
rate than Greater London.  The population was projected to 

increase from 238,281 (2011/12) to 244,810 (2014/15). 

POPULATION 

Using GLA Round SHLAA (Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment) Based Household Projections (2013), the number 
of households in Havering was projected to steadily increase 

from 97,478 (2011/12) to 101,083 (2014/15). 

POPULATION 

There is a time lag of at least one quarter. The most current 
data shows GP registrations continuing to rise each quarter 
with 1,518 additional registrations in the last quarter alone. 
(Q4, Q1 and Q2 have been updated to reflect data changes) 

24,353 24,948 22,016 24,700 
31,500 

29,276 28,245 
24,881 

25,572 

30,527 

2,590 2,431 
6,476 

5,827 

14,685 

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

70,000

80,000

90,000

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 06: Online Transactions 

Online Payments IVR Payments Applications & Reports

CUSTOMER SERVICES 

Online transactions have increased by around 37% since last 
year.  Moving more processes online, such as for parking, 
green waste renewal and council tax payments, has made 

services more accessible online. 

1,569 1,334 1,474 1,405 1,604 

1,249 

1,119 
1,211 1,143 

1,291 

300 

215 
263 

262 

313 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 07: New Housing Benefit/Council Tax Claims 

HB/CT Claims HB Claims CT Support

HOUSING BENEFIT 

The number of new Housing Benefit and Council Tax Support 
claims received is slightly higher than last year (Q4). However, 
over the full year, the number of new claims has decreased, 
which may reflect an upturn in the economy.  

1
4

 

2
 5
 9
 1
4

 

2
5

7
 

3
0

 1
1

9
 

1
9

6
 

2
7

2
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 09: Permanent admissions to residential and 
nursing care homes 

Aged 18-64 Aged 65+

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

Demand for residents aged 18-64 is the same as last year with 
14 permanent admissions, but increased for residents aged 
over 65 with 272 permanent admissions (compared to 257 

last year). 

Quarterly 
Annual 

Cumulative 
Quarterly 

Annual 

Quarterly 

Source: GLA Round Borough 
Preferred Option Projections, 
2013 

1

P
age 45



4
5

 

3
 

1
2

 

2
0

 

2
8

 

0

10

20

30

40

50

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 11: Residents Requiring Ongoing 
Service After Reablement 

ADULT SOCIAL CARE 

This is a local indicator and is reported cumulatively. 
Demand has  decreased with 28 of 640 residents requiring 

ongoing services after reablement compared to  
45 in the same period last year. 

2
0

7
 

2
2

2
 

2
3

1
 

2
1

5
 

2
4

0
 

190

200

210

220

230

240

250

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 12: Number of 
Looked After Children (LAC) 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

The number of looked after children and young people this 
quarter (240) is the highest number on record, increasing by 

33 compared to the same period last year (207)  
 

1
4

9
 

1
6

6
 

1
7

2
 

1
8

0
 2

1
4

 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 13: Number of  Child Protection (CP) Plans 
 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

The number of children & young people on Child Protection 
Plans increased by 34 cases last quarter to 214, the highest 
amount this period and 65 more than the same period last 

year.   

1
8

2
 

1
9

7
 

1
5

3
 

1
4

6
 

1
4

8
 

0

50

100

150

200

250

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 14: Number of Children in Need (CIN) Plans 
 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

There were two more children/young people on a CIN Plan 
since last quarter, and 34 less than the same period last year. 
The numbers of cases have been lower on average over the 

year compared with 2013/14.  

1
,4

7
5

 

1
,9

0
2

 

1
,8

1
5

 

1
,6

6
7

 

1
,6

0
0

 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 15: Number of  Contacts received in 
Triage / MASH 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

There were 1,600 contacts received in Triage/MASH in Q4; a 
decrease of 67 on the previous quarter.  This is a decrease of 
125 compared to the same point last year, and the full year 

total is lower than 2013/14. 

Quarterly 
Total 

Snapshot Snapshot 

Snapshot 

Cumulative 

3
1

9
 

4
4

3
 

2
5

7
 

3
9

6
 

6
7

8
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 16: Number of contacts becoming 
referrals to Children's Social Care 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

There were 678 contacts becoming referrals to Children’s 
Social Care in Q4; an increase of 282 on the previous quarter.  
This is a an increase of 359 compared to the same point last 

year. 

Quarterly 
Total 

2

P
age 46



1
9

5
 

1
2

9
 2

9
5

 

5
7

6
 

7
8

7
 

2
5

 

3
3

 

5
1

 1
3

5
 

1
6

1
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

900

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 19: Homeless Decisions and Acceptances 

Homeless Decisions Homeless Acceptances

2
9

9
 

4
3

5
 

2
5

7
 

3
9

9
 

6
9

2
 

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

800

2013/14
(Q4)

2014/15
(Q1)

2014/15
(Q2)

2014/15
(Q3)

2014/15
(Q4)

DP 17: Number of referrals 
becoming assessments 

CHILDREN'S SERVICES 

There were 692 referrals becoming assessments in Q4; an 
increase of 293 on the previous quarter. This is an increase of 

393 compared to the same point last year. 

HOMELESSNESS 

Although the number of people approaching the Housing 
Advice Team has increased (homeless decisions), detailed 

preventative advice and negotiation with family or landlords 
has helped keep homeless acceptances relatively low 

(although this has still increased by 136 since last year). 

Quarterly 

Quarterly 
Total 

3

P
age 47



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	Minutes

	7 CORPORATE PERFORMANCE REPORT - ANNUAL (2014/15)
	Item 3b - Appendix 1 (CPR - annual) - V9
	Item 3c - Demand Management Graphs (Q4) for Cabinet

	8 REPORT OF THE PRIVATE RENTED SECTOR LANDLORD TOPIC GROUP
	150818 Topic Group Supporting Doc  Appendix


